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AN ANALYSIS OF THE HERICK TIMBER SALE, BEAR 
VALLEY UNIT OF THE MALHEUR NATIONAL FOREST, 
OREGON 

Introduction 

It has been the policy of the Un1ted States For- 

est Service to make large timber sales only when, 

among other things, they are necessary for the develop- 

ment of local communibies, whcb. would otherwise not 

have an opportunity for further progress unless the sale 

is made. Grant County, Oregon, withì which this timber 

sale area is located, lles 1n the west-central part of 

Oregon. Harney County, where the sawmill was to be locat- 

ed and most of the railroad construction work done, lies 

south of Grant County and extends to the southern bound- 

ary of Oregon. Until the time that this sale was made 

in 1923 there was no railroad transportation into that 

part of the country, and these two counties were very 

much in need of some activity large enough to justify 

the construction of a railroad which would give the re- 

sources of this region a very definite value and encourage 

their development. 

The fact that both Harney and GrantS Counties were 

isolated and that the timber provided practically the 
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only possible means of inducing someone to build a raIl- 

road which would open up that part of the state was 

undoubtedly the underlying reason for the decision by 

the Forest Service to sell some of the yellow pine tim- 

ber that was growing on the national forest in these 

two counties. The sale was made in 1923 to Mr. Fred 

Tierrick of Saint Maries, Idaho. 

The people of these two counties were especT ally 

Interested In this sale, and because so much depended 

upon the success of the ventre, ter' interest was more 

vital than it probably would have been in most other 

cases. Until this time the people had been almost 

wholly dependent upon stock raising for their lveli- 

hood. When the markets of the country were especially 

low for cattle after the World War, the people were 

practically at a stalemate with their main source of 

income all but obliterated; consequently, this tim- 

ber sale held within it the hopes and fears of many 

people. 

The interest in this case lies prImarily in the 

fact political pressure was employed in the efforts 

to have the timber advertised for sale nigInally, to 

oppose extensions of tTme for completion of the contract, 

and later to bring about an investigalYon by the United 

States Senate of the circumstances surrounding the sale. 



It furnishes en example of how a few people with ir- 

uluence can sway the administration of any government 

business, and although those in charge of the dminis- 

tratior of this sale denied that they had been influenc- 

ed by public sentiment, it remains a fact that the timber 

in all probability would never have been advertised for 

sale or the investigation made by the Committee on Public 

Lands and 3urveys if pressure had not been brought to 

bear where it would. accomplish the desired reeults. 



Obj ective 

This analysis was undertaken in an effort to deter- 

nilne principally how politics may be employed to bring 

about' desired action in a governmental body, how ef- 

fective political influences are in this connection, 

why it is necessary or desirable to bring pressure to 

bear, the intensity of pressure necessary to cause a 

reaction, and to what extent the political influences 

must he recognized by a government administrator. 

Many of the Derplexlng problems encountered by a 

public official in managing a public business are 

brought out quite vividly by the Senate investigation 

that was conducted for the purpose of determining the 

truth in the many accusations made by different people 

of Grant and Ilarney Counties. These accusations were 

made against both the United States Forest Service and 

Herrick. The problems encountered were so many and 

the factors effecting them of such a varied nature that 

the decisions to be made were much more involved than 

they appeared. With everything running smoothly, the 

bottom dropped out of the lumber market, several in- 

fluencial people had their feelings hurt, other dif- 

ficulties arose and the troubles of the administrators 

kept mounting hi.cther until their hands were forced. 
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History of the Case 

The timbered area in Grant and Harney Counties was 

withdrawn from sale or other disposal under the public 

land laws in 1902, and later the withdrawal was made 

permanent and the Malheur National Forest was establish- 

ed. This act hemmed in and made practically valueless 

the timber in prIvate ownership, because within itself 

it was not suffcIent in auantity to j'stify the build- 

Ing of a railroad fof its removal. 

In 1916 plans were made to build a raIlroad from 

Crane, Oregon at the end of the Union PacifIc Hailroad 

to Burns, Oregon, but the enterprise was not completed. 

Then in 1919, Mr. E. W. Barnes entered the picture at 

Burns. He immediately saw the va1ie of both the quantity 

and quality of the virgin timber in this region and 

started to work. After securnC a county cruise of the 

privately owned timber and estimating the amount of tin- 

ber on the national forest that was tributary to Burns, 

he went east to try to interest some large operator in 

the proposition. He was successful in his efforts, but 

in 1920 the company decided to abandon the enterprise, 

and the people were again disappointed. 

In 1922 hiP. Barnes was sent to Viashngton, D. C. 

by the people of Burns with a petition sirmed by many 

people of Grant and Harney Counties to the Secretary 

of Agriculture asking for the c000erat:on of the Forest 

Service in the matter. Supported by the Oregon delegation 



in Congress, the general manager of the Portland Chamber 

of Commerce, and other Influencial people, Mr. Barnes 

was successful in getting the Land Exchange Act ot 1922 

passed which authorized the exchange of private lands 

within the exterior boundaries of a national forest, and 

he secured a promise from Colonel Greeley, Chief Forester 

of the United 1tates, that the timber would be appraised 

Dreparatory to offering it for sale. 

The timber was appraised and advertised for sale 

for six months, starting in August, 1922 at two dollars 

and seventy-five cents per thousand board feet. There 

were no bids, however, and it was readvertised at two 

dollars per thousand for thirty days, starting in March 

1923. Mr. ilerrick's bid of two dollars and eighty cents 

per thousand was high, and he received the contract 

after producing proof of his financial ability to carry 

out his obligations in the contract. 

The contract provided essentially for the con- 

strction of a common carrier railroad from Crane to 

ßeneca, Oregon; that cutting and removal of private 

or government timber should be started by April 1, 

1925; that at least sixty million hoard feet of tim- 

ber should be cut by June 1, 1928; that extensions of 

time would he granted by the Secretary of Agriculture 

upon written request of the purchaser; that the sale 

was for the timber (apnroximately 890,000,000 board 

feet) on 57,000 acres of land; and that the contract was 

to expire on November 30, 1945. 
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Shortly after Mr. Heri'ick had complied with the 

stipulations necessary to secure the contract and had 

been granted it, the market price of lumber started 

down and continued dropping. Certain people began 

oroosing him for various reasons, and together this op- 

position and low prices for timber products, which he 

was endeavoring to sell to finance this venture at 

Burns, made it very difficult for him to speed up con- 

struction as much as the contract and the people demand- 

ed. He asked for and was rranted extensions of time 

twice, each time foi' a period of one year. 

Under the leadership of Mr. Barnes, who had failed 

to secure the contract for a company he was represent- 

ing, the opposition soon gained support and influence. 

They "railroaded" a memorial to Congress requesting an 

investigation of the contract through the Oregon Legis- 

lature, and the investigation was authorized by Congress 

early in 1927. 

This investigation proved nothing except that 1Tr. 

Herrick had been negligent in meeting his obligations, 

and it undoubtedly made hi securing a bond issue to corn- 

plete the project more difflcult. In December, 1927, 

with lumber prices still falling, Mr. Her rick ws unable 

to comply aatisfactorily, and the contract ws cancelled, 

all of hi rights being foreite5. The cntract was re- 

lot to the Edward Hines Lurrber Cornpany, and it is still 

in théir hands. 



AiIALYS IS 



TNTERE31iED PAITIES AND THEIR VIEWPOINTS 

The Citizens of Grant and Harney Counties 

Many of the people of these two counties had wait- 

ed forty years for a development of this kind to open 

that part of t:e country by the construction of a rail- 

road, which would bring about agricultural improvement 

by making markets more accessible and irrigation more 

feasible. Likewise, their stock could be shipped 

directly to markets without the necessity of driving 

them a long distance to a shipping point. Before this 

time they had not considered the timber as a possible 

means to this end, but when this possibilIty was shown 

them they grasped it quickly. They were in such a 

plorable condition that they would have tried nearly 

anything to alleviate their suffering. 

There seemed to be a natural division of sentiment 

practically from the time the contract was let. One 

group was firmly behind the Forest Service and Mr. Her- 

rick, and the other group continually opposed Ïlr. Her- 

rick and his endeavors. The latter group although not 

very active at first, soon gained enough influence to 

make a diffl cult proposition very much more so for the 

parties to this contract. They made it difficult for 

ir. Herrick to acquire a mill site and rights-of-way 

for railroad construction and to borrow money when he 

needed it. They opposed any extensions of time by the 
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Forest Service and forced an investigation of the case 

by the Government. 

There is no d.ubt that those opDosin. the operation 

had ample reason to complain and make demards of Mr. 

Herrick and the Forest Service. In the investigation 

sworn statements were produced to the effect that !r. 

Herrick's employees let contracts for construction 

work to irresponsible contractors who, because they held 

these contracts, were given credit by business rien. 

Some of the contractors defaulted, and the busIness men 

lost money. However, these losses could not have been 

so great or widespread, because all of the business 

men of Burns but eight signed a statement that they 

were in favos.' of the action by the Forest Service in 

grantIng extensions of time to Mr. Herrick. 

There were many delays, whether justifiable or not, 

which caused people to doubt the sincerity of Mr. lier- 

rick, who maintained the attitude continually that it 

was none of the people's business what he did or when 

he did it. He very seldom appeared at Burns Where most 

of the development work was centered, and he never den- 

ied the various rumors that were being circulated about 

his intentions. He never made any attempt to explain 

to anyone outside of his company why it was four months 

after the contract was signed before he started work. 

This was undoubtedly onof the first reasons for active 

opposition against him. 
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Another grievance fed by the agitators was that 

the Forest ¿ervice ntended to modify the cornon car- 

rier clause of the contract in such a manner as to 

make the compliance with it optional wIth Mr. Herrick. 

This type of opposition has ali the ear-marks of pro- 

paganda, however, because no one ever took the trouble 

to ask Colonel Greeley whether this clause was to be 

modified. They failed to recognize the fact that this 

part of the contract was not compulsory as far as the 

Forest Service was concerned, and the Forest Service was 

not bound in any way to include the clause in the original 

contract. It was put in with the primary idea of help- 

Ing the people. Besides this, by forcing Mr. Herrick 

to condemn rights-of-way for railroad construction, 

the railroad became, ipso facto, a coimnon carrier. A 

copy of the contract with its modifications was on file 
at John Day, Oregon or Portland, and was available at 

all times if anyone had cared to look at it carefully. 

This was an argument which gained much support because, 

if Mr. Herrick were not to construct the railroad as a 

cornrrion carrier, he could bottle up that territory and 

prevent any private logs, cattle, or other freight be- 

ing shipped out over it. 
The Forest Service and Mr. Herrick were accused 

of fraud because Mr. Herrick had in his employ two 

former Forest Service employees, one of whom was very 
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instrumental in getting him to bid on the 
timber. How- 

ever, it is a common occurrence for the Forest Service 

to have men hired from its forces by private 
orerators, 

and Uttle attention was paid to this comlant. 

In a Uke manner it was theoretically possible for 

Mr. Herrick to cut the maximum allowable amount 
of tim- 

ber for three years and close down the operation 
for 

five or six years had he so desired. This was true 

because the possible maximum cut for three years amounted 

to more than the minimum cut for five or six 
years. Of 

course, if this were to happen it wold mean unemploy- 

ment, and the people wanted a continuous income. 
How- 

ever, with an investment of from three to five million 

dollars this was a pretty remote possibility. He would 

lose more by closing down than he would 
by operating, 

even considering very poor markets. 

Many of the peonle, particularly those opposing 

Herrick, seemed to think that they were the ones who 

should be protected in the contract and not the con- 

tractor. They owned the timber, according to their rea- 

soning, and they thought that their rights 
were being 

ignored; furthermore, they should have been consulted 

about changes in the contract. These people in all 

probability never would have thought much about 
their 

rights if someone with a special reason had not 
pointed 

these things out to them. The ordinary individual does 

not pick out technical points of complIance 
and protest 
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them, because he generally is not interested enough to 

check up on the terms of the contract. If he does notice 

some point that might be rightfully protested, he feels 

that it is none of his business. The people had more 

money in general, they had received a favorable report 

on a proposed irrlgation project by the reclamation 

engineers, and as a rule they were satisfied anzi in a 

better state of affairs than they had been for forty 

years. There was no disposition on the part of the people 

generally to criticize and hinder Mr. Herrick. Too 

many of them were henefitting by the money he was spend- 

ing, even though he was not spending as much as they 

thought he should. 

There was a substantial element of people who, 

although disappointed because the work had not gone ahead 

faster, were in favor of the action taken by the Forest 

Service bacause they realIzed that in a project of that 

kind and magnitude t.e economic conditions could not be 

disregarded. A lawyer in hums wrote to the Forest 

Service and told them that most of the influencial people 

of that town were in favor of Mr. Herrck. Later, pe- 

titions were sent to the Forest Service requesting con- 

sideration of r. Herrick's interests and expressing 

confidence in his ability to complete the contract. 

There were more people who sgned a petition against Mr. 

Herrick than there were who signed the one in his favor, 

but those who circulated the petition against him made 

several false statements in order to get people to sign it. 
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They stated that he had applied for extensions of time 

of two years (before the time that they were asked to 

sign the petition), that he was holding the contract 

merely as a speculaMon, an that he was try to pre- 

vent a resonsihle operator's putting, the project through. 

None of these statements were true, but ther apparently 

served a purpose very admirably. 

That the opposItion to Mr. Herrick an the Forest 

¿er'ice was pretty well organized is shown by the fact 

that they had gotten the resolution through the Oregon 

Legislature to memorialize Congress in an attempt to 

have the circumstances surrounding the letting of the 

contract and its extensions investigated before anyone 

could oppose their actions. The editor of the Burns 

Times-Herald was not aware that the resolution had been 

passed until he read a notification of it 4n the Morning 

Oregonian the next day. Most of the opposition came from 

Grant County, and Harney county was not even represented 

when the resolution was passed. Burns, as a corm-nunity, 

was never allowed to express its opinion about this 

memorial to the Oregon delegation in Congress until 

after the memorial was sent. One of those who were 

oppos:1ng Mr. Herrick was associated in a land enterprise 

at Burns with Mr. Barnes and was a member of the Oregon 

Legislature from Grant County. 
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The United States Forest Service 

The Forest Service was n a difficult posItion In 

this case, and their problems started before the contract 

was let to Mr. Herrick. The agitation for this sale 

carne, quite naturally, during a period in which general 

economic conditions were unfavorable. As long as the 

people in this comniunity had an income from 
their cattle, 

they were not interested in the timber. Their demand 

for the sale of the timber came when the market 
price 

of both cattle and lumber was low, and this was undoubted- 

ly a reason why no bIds were received when the 
timber was 

advertised the first time, necessitating a second 
ad- 

vertisment at a lower price per thousand. 

The timber was put on the market at the request 

of many people in Oregon and the Oregon delegation in 

Congress. There was so much pressure brought to bear 

by the people throuh the petitions and the Influence 

of certain individuals that the Forest Service 
decided 

it woulc be good business to readvert'se the timber at 

two dollars per thousand. This was not a reversal 

of their regulation that no timber be advertised 
at a 

price that is less than the appraised price per thousand. 

It was simply a new appraised price set by the officials 

because the former one was considered too high. Colonel 

Greeley stated that the sale was not the result of 

effort on the part of the Oregon delegation in Congress 

to influence the action of the Forest Service, and that 



15 

it was not appraised by the Forest Service as a matter 

of political expedency. This statement is undoubtedly 

true strictly speaking, but it 'as much more convenient 

and much more commendable strategy on the part of the 

Forest Service for them to agree to sell the timber at 

this time. 

After i1r. Herrick had furnished proof of hisfi- 

nancial ability at that time to carry out the terms of 

the contract, there was no reason for their refusing to 

give it to him. Re was not required to show that he 

possessed the cash to complete the contract but only 

that his assets amounted to a certain specified sum. 

And the contract contained nothing to the effect that 

he was to finance this venture from the earni:gs of his 

other operations. If it had, Mr. Herrickts argument 

that his failure to comply was due to the lack of earn- 

ings from these ober enterprises would have been given 

more consideration. 

The proose of the Forest Service in handling all 

of the phases of this sale was to give Harney and Grant 

Counties a common-carrier railroad and to bring about 

the earliest possible development of the Government 

timber. From the Government standpoint alone it was 

essential that the big volume of timber in this region 

should not be dependent upon a private railroad for ac- 

cess to the markets. The Forest Service went Into mat- 

ters of specific construction in dealIng with this case 
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more completely and thoroughly than they had in any other 

in order to put the proposition in such a state that Mr. 

Herrick would have to go ahead without delay in the con- 

struction of the mill and railroad which the local peo- 

ple wanted. 

In makinE all of their decisions pertaining to the 

execution of this contract, the Forest Service was 

guided by three considerations. These were the interests 

of the government, the interests of the local community, 

and the equity due the contractor. At practically all 

stages of this matter the Forest Service had received 

letters of protest and approval, but they did not act 

upon these recommendations because the decisions could 

not be left up to the people. Then the decisions were 

made the officials were concerned with the welfare of 

tne citizens of these two counties, and they refused 

to cancel the contract and have the whole thing throvm 

into a stalemate with Mr. Herrick owning the land, some 

other person having the contract for the timber, and the 

Federal courts in a position to step in and tie up the 

whole thing for three or four years. They wanted to 

avoid delay. 

The case was a perplexing and difficult one to 

handle. Mr. Herrick was not carrying out the provisions 

of the contract as they should have been, but he was 

making very substantial investments in the enterprise. 
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His attitude all along apreared to be sincere enoughand 
he seemed serious in his intention to go through with 
the contract; however, he wanted the proposition to be 

carried out Th a manner that was convenient for himself. 
When it became evident that tie terms of the con- 

tract could not, or would not, be met as promptly as 

they were supposed to be, the Forest Service added specific 
modifications to it in an effort to persuade Mr. Herrick 
to meet his obligations more promptly. Later they exact- 
ed a fineof fifty thousand dollars, not for any specific 
loss incurred, but as liquidated damages. Upon the re- 
quest of the Oregon delegation in Congress the Forest 
Service sent a representative from Pashington, D. C. to 
Burns in an effort to determine the cause or causes of 

the trouble. The primary reason for ail of the trouible 
was the unwillingness or inability of Mr. Herrick to 
handle his financial affairs so that the money would be 

available for the work. 

There were several very sound reasons why the Forest 
Service did not want to cancel the contract besides the 
fact that lumber prices were low. Two years was not a 

sufficient length of time to enable r. 'errick to make 

the necessary preparations for starting the operation. 
The appraised price of t1e timber was based partially 
upon the assumption that the Union Pacific would build 
the railroad from Crane to Burns, and the calculations 



of costs and investments were started at Burns. Mr. Her- 

rick had sorne difficulty in reaching an agreement with 

the Union acific and had to build the railroad himself. 

The investments he was making couldn't be ignored even 

though they amounted only to about one-half as much as 

the contract called for. If tbey were to have canelled 

the contract, the Forest Service would have had no con- 

trol over the improvements made by Tilr. Herrick, and upon 

reselling the timber the purchaser would have to acauire 

Mr. HerrickTs interests or duplicate them. A resale 

would necessarily have involved an indefinite delay, 

and the case might have been taken into Federal courts 

to enjoin the Secretary of Agriculture from selling the 

timber. The officials of the Forest Service could see 

no advantage to the people or to the government in can- 

cellation at that time, and they were not sure that they 

could get as good a price for the timber if it were re- 

sold. 

The Forest Service always receives protests from 

private operators when government timber is sold. From 

the standpoint of the private lumberman, if the Forest 

Service were to be censored at all in this case, it 

should be for putting the timber on an already over- 

loaded market while advocating conservation. Because 

the industry was equipped at this time to produce much 

more lumber than was necessary to satisfy the demand, it 

would have been a crime for an operation of this size to 



19 

have started functioning during that period. For these 

reasons the Forest Service should have granted reason- 

able extensions of time. 
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Mr. Fred Herrick 

There were several reasons why Mr. Herrick was 

considered to be one of the men most capable of mak- 

Ing a success of this project by those who knew him 

and were familiar with the nature of the problems 

that had to be solved before the business could be 

put on a paying basis. He had always been a builder 

and never a speculator. He was a very substantial 

operator with properties in Idaho and Mississippi, 

which were estimated to have been worth at that time 

between eight and nine million dollars. He was the 

first private operator in the white pine region of 

northern Idaho to practice piling and burning of 

logging slash as a precaution against fire, and for 

this reason he was considered an excellent operator 

for the Forest Service to have in this yellow pine 

contract. He was the only one of the persons consider- 

ed by the appraiser as possible purchasers who was 

thought to have had enough nerve to attempt to build 

a railroad eighty miles long. 

Mr. fIerrick's troubles began almost as soon as 

he had signed the contract. He had difficulties in 

acquiring a certifIcate of necessity and convenience 

from the State to build the railroad, and he could not 

come to an agreement with the Union PacifIc in côn- 

nection with that section of it between Crane and Burns. 

Some of the land owners did not want to let him build 
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across their land, making it necessary to condemn the 

rights-of-way. This all took time, and when the work 

was not started promptly certain individuals began op- 

posing his actions. They thought he did not intend to 

develop the project as rapidly as ft should have been. 

Un the other hand Mr. Uerrick was known to be 

independent in a bull-headed manner. He wanted thngs 

arranged to suit his own convenience, regardless of 

what the people or the Forest Uervice thought. To the 

people he gave the impression of taking a 'public be 

damned" attitude. He apparently never paid his bills 

until he could no longer delay, making some people 

cautious in dealin with him. 

As is the general policy with lumbermen, Mr. 

Herrick intended to finance this new enterprise by 

liquidating his white piñe stumpage in northern Idaho 

through the conversion of small pieces of property as 

he needed more money. He had always been adverse to 

mortgaging property and did not want to do so in thIs 

ease. Everything would have worked out nicely If his 

plan to finance the enterprise had not failed, but the 

price of lumber starLed dropping in 1923 and kept going 

lower as long as he held the contract. He refused to 

put two million feet of lumber, that he had stored in 

lumber yards, on tìe market when he needed the money 

because it would have depressed prices even more than 

they were. 
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He was accused of delaying the work on this pro- 

ject in order to keep the Government timber off the mar- 

ket and thereby help his other interests, hut the Forest 

Service did not recognize this as a legitimate reason 

for delay. That is, they did not accept his reasoning 

that it was for the best interests of the industry as 

a whole to delay the work on this enterprise, even 

though ft may have been logical. 

Mr. derrick could have complied technically by 

taking motor trucks up to the timber and logging a few 

thousand feet of sturnpage before the two years had ex- 

pired, if he had been purposely stringing the operation 

along. de was offered a good price for his equity several 

times but consistently refused to sell, and he refused 

to speculate when approached on the subject by citizens 

of the community who were interested in developing a 

townsite near Burns. He was constantly putting money 

into the enterprise, although he never coriplied entïrely 

with the terms of the contract. 

This project was r. derrick's hobby, ansi he always 

acted in good faith in the matter. He intended to fur- 

ther the reforestation cause, make the operation per- 

manent, and leave it as a monument to himself. All of 

the construction work that was done was of the highest 

type. He even agreed to run special trains for the 

convenience of those who had cattle to shp, and he 

ordered a special gasoline car to be used for passenger 
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and mail service between Burns and Seneca. Another item 

which he made arrangements for and which had nothing to 

do wIth the contract was the buying of equipment cap- 

able of furnishing twenty-five thousand people within 

a radius of forty miles all the electricity they could 

use. However, he wanted to do the thing his own way 

and when ho felt so inclined. 

The contract as originally drawn up contained no 

specific clauses compelling Mr. Herrick to build a saw- 

mill or to construct a common-carrier railroad by any 

specified time. The Forest Service added these stipu- 

lations in an effort to speed up the work. The original 

contract stated essentially that there was to be a 

common-carrier raIlroad built and that he was to start 

cutting either Government or private timber by April 1, 

1925. It was understood that he would build a sawmIll. 
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Mr. E. W. Barne3 

Mr, Barnes' occupatIon was that of a buyer and sel- 

1er of timber under a real estate dealer's license, He 

went to Burns In 1916, and immediately perceived the 

value of the quaUty and quantity of the western yellow 

pine timber 1f it were made accessable by the construction 

of transportation facilities. He cruised some of the 

Government timber himself and had a county cruise made 

of the private timber, While doing this he bought op- 

tions on approximately one-hundred millIon board feet of 

private stumpage. Likewise, he had a preliminary survey 

made of the anproximate railroad route into that section 

from Crane at the end of the Union Pacific line and 

secured options on the land at places around which it 

would be almost impossIble to construct a railroad. Re 

bought the only two possible mill sites, and he and his 

associates bought approximately two thousand acres of 

land between Burns and the mill site on both sides of 

the highway and railroad route. Thus they were prepared 

for the development which would result from the sale of 

the timber. 

The first operator. Mr. Barnes succeeded in interest- 

ing in the development, soondropped it as a bad pro- 

position. It was at this time that ten businessmen of 

Burns formed a committee to finance Mr. Barnes and help 

him sell the timber. With his first effort to interest 

private capital m a failure, he decided to try to get 
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the Forest Service to sell part of the timber on the 

Malheur National Forest as an added incentive to that 

offered in the private stumpage. This he was successful 

in doing with the assistance of the Oregon delegation 

in Congress, several petitions, and telegraris. How- 

ever, everything did not materialize as he had expected, 

and Mr. Herrick was awarded the contract instead of the 

company Mr. Barnes was representing. This, quite natural- 

ly, did not suit his plans, because he had been offered 

two dollars per thousand for his stumpage by the firm 

he was connected with in promoting the deal and had no 

such agreement with Mr. Herrick. In fact he had never 

heard of Mr. Herrick before this time. 

The first thing Mr. Barnes did when he found that 

Mr. Herrick had submitted the highest bid for the timber 

was to offer Mr. Herrick's representative twenty-five 

thousand dollars in an effort to bribe him to take the 

bid and leave the Portland offices of the Forest Service. 

Then he was not successful in having the bid withdrawn, 

he attempted to have the Forest Service officials reject 

it; however, they refused to dothis, and he was forced 

to accept the situation as it was and make the best of it. 

It was necessary for Herrick to purchase at 

least some of the options Mr. Barnes held on the private 

stuiripage because it was impossible to gain access to the 

Government tlriher without crossing privately owned lands. 

î 
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Likewise, Mr. Herrick had to purchase railroad rights- 

of-way and the mill site from him. In selling these 

options Mr. Barnes wanted to safe-guard the communities 

interests as well as his own; therefore, he had provi- 

sions included in the deeds which were designed to force 

Mr. Herrick to meet his obligations in the contract. 

Some of these Mr. Herrick accepted, and others he did 

not. 

As he often stated, Mr. Barnes may have been 

perfectly willing, in an attempt to help the people of 

that v4cinity, to cooDerate with Mr. Herrick until he 

saw that the project was not being developed as rapidly 

as it should have been. On the other hand, he could just 

as easily have cooperated until he had benef'itted as 

much as possible and then begun his opposition. The 

evidence indicated that he was primarily interested in 

his own welfare and was not the public benefactor he at- 

tempted to simulate. Many of his options on tImber and 

land were to expire in 1923, and it is little wonder he 

wanted the timber sold. 

Mr. Barnes seemed to consider himself the repre- 

sentative of the public as long as he was benefitted by 

this attitude, and he apparently thought that Mr. I-1er- 

rick owed him allegiance. He opposed both the Forest 

Service and Tr. Tlerrick. After granting rghts-ofway 

through lands, the options on which he secured by telling 

the people that any large company would not undertake 
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the development 1f they had to deal with several private 

citizens, he instuted court proceedings n an effort to 

force Mr. Herrick to return the options to him, con- 

tending that Mr. Herrick had not complied wIth the con- 

siderations under which the right-of-way had been grant- 

ed. T:-ie same thing was true of the mill site, which he 

had agreed to give, but would not deed, to Mr. Herrick 

until the Harney County Fair Association had deeded a 

traci3 of land to him. He made it impossible for Mr. Her- 

rick to secure sorne of the rights-of-way without condemn- 

ing the land. And he was demanding that Mr. Herrick go 

ahead with the development of the project while he was 

doing everything in his power to hinder the work and have 

the contract cancelled. 

In his efforts to have the contract cancelled by 

the Forest Service Mr. Barnes made several trips to VJash 

ington, D. C., contacting the officials of the Forest 

Service and the Oregon delegation in Congress. He 

dictated telegrams protesting extensions of time for corn- 

pletion of the contract, which he had different people 

send to the Oregon congressmen. These telegrams were 

identically worded, merely being signed by the persons 

who sent them. While he was in Washington he decided 

that he would not gain much toward cancellation of the 

contract without a memorial from the Oregon Legislature; 

so he prepared one and sent it to his friends at Burns. 

They, without consulting the Committee of ten which was 



backing Mr. Barnes and using all of its influence to 

help him, took the memorial to Salem and lobbied it 

through the State Legislature before anyone had an op- 

portjnity to oppose their actions. This memorial brought 

about the investigation of the contract by the Senate. 

Mr. Barnes was defeating his own purpose, if this 

purpose was to have the country around Burns develoned. 

He was developing an adverse sentIment toward Mr. Her- 

rick that was making it difficult for him to borrow 

money when it was most needed to keep the project moving 

ahead. He was losing the good will of the people around 

Burns and of the Committee of ten because he wanted to 

speculate with his land holdings there. Very much of 

the opposition he developed against Mr. Herrick was 

from the people of Grant County. This was true probably 

because they were not benefittlng as greatly as were the 

people of Harney County. He stated that he had Mr. 

Herrick bottled up in every draw that went into Bear 

Valley. lie was just three jumps ahead of Mr. Herrick 

and intended to stay that way. 
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The Cornrriittee of Ten 

This was a committee of ten businessmen of Burns 

that was formed soon after the Edward Hines Lumber 

Company stepped out of the picture in 1922 to finance 

Mr. Barnes in his efforts to sell the timber. These 

men used their influence with the Portland Chamber of 

Commerce, the Oregon State Legislature, and the Oregon 

delegation in Congress to help Mr. Barnes promote this 

enterprise and furnished him about ten thousand dollars 

for expenses. They allowed him many privileges, and he 

dominated the group; however, when he wanted them to in- 

corporate with him in a land speculation project they 

refused because of their obligations to the rest of the 

townspeople, who would not have had the same opportunity. 

In the later stages of this controversy the members 

of this committee were not even consulted by Mr. Barnes 

before he acted. They had apparently served their pur- 

pose, and he had no more use for their help, especially 

when he knew that he could not get it anyway because of 

his actions and selfish atUtude after the contract had 

been signed. 
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The Grant County Stockgrowers' Association 

The stockmen of the West were bitterly opposed to 

the regulation of grazing on the national forests by the 

Forest Service, and this may have been just another op- 

portunity for reta1iaton on their part. The Grant 

County Stockgrowers' Association was interested in this 

development for tuis reason and also because the rail- 

road would furnish an opportunity to ship their cattle 

to markets without the necessity of a long drive to a 

shipping point. Their resolution to Congress demanding 

an investigation of the contract may have been prompted 

further by Colonel Greeley's grazing policies, with this 

controversy thrown in as good measure. Regardless of 

theIr motives, they had influence and used it effectively. 

Most of the people from Grant County who signed 

the petition against Mr. Herrick were stock growers. This 

was partially brought about by Mr. Herricks proposing 

to have his railroad a common-carrier Intrastate, Instead 

of interstate so he could fix the freight rates himself. 

They thought the rates on their stock shipments would 

be higher under these conditions than they would have 

been with a through rate. 
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Influential Forces 

The fundamental cause of all of the trouble seems 

to have been due to economic forces. The market price 

of lumber started dropping at about the same time that 

ir. Herrick signed the contract. He had intended to 

finance the project through the liquidation of some of 

his other holdings, and when the price started down he 

naturally did not want to put more lumber on the market 

and force the price down further. Being adverse to 

mortgaging his property in order to raise money, he 

was unable to put as much money into this project as was 

necessary to comply comnietely with the stipulations of 

the contract in the time given him. 

grew all of his troubles. If he had been able or willing 

to comply more fully, nothing would have started the 

ball rolling which finally caused hIm to lose the contract. 

Public opinion was an important factor 5n deter- 

mining the outcome of this project because the people 

were so vitally interested in it. Success meant a new 

lease on life to them, the realization of a long-cherish- 

ed hope, and an opportunity to develop theIr community 

and make it attractive to new enterprises. It meant em- 

ployinent for hundreds of people and securIty for many 

more. Failure of the project meant more years of wait- 

Ing and wishing, depending upon stock raising for a rather 

meager livelihood. Consequently, it was not diffIcult 

for anyone who was so inclined to get action either in 
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favor of or against so large an enterprise.. 

Even though a number of persons may be interested 

in sanie undertaking, they will seldom take concerted 

action about it upon their own initiative. Undoubtedly, 

if Mr. Barnes had not led the opposition, it never would 

have been strong enough to demand any attention, and 

Mr. Ilerrick would have completed the development. 

Similarly, if anyone had so desired, he could have secured 

as much supDort for Mr. Herrick as Mr. Barnes did against 

him. Mr. Barnes, especially, played an important role 

as a leader, either because of personal reasons or be- 

cause he did have the public good at heart. 

Speculation caine into the picture possibly be- 

fore the contract was let. Mr. Barnes must have plan- 

ned to speculate when he bought timber land and made 

other investments prior to any definite development in 

that regIon. His business was tImber speculation, and 

he never would. have put so much time and money into the 

proposition when he knew that he would not develop it 

himself if he had not expected to realize a profit by 

so doing. 

Whenever the government enters a business it is 

practically impossible to keep politics from effecting 

it either directly or indirectly. Political force was 

employed to have the timber sold at first, to oppose 

extensions of time for completion of the contract, to 
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bring pressure to bear in an effort to make Mr. Tierrick 

comply with the stipulatIons of the contract, and to 

bring about the investigation of the contract by the 

Senate sub-committee. 

The administrative policies of the Forest Service 

influenced the decisions they made in this case, and 

therefore they must be considered as a factor which had 

a bearing on the outcome. The Forest Service had to 

consider the interests of the Government, the interests 

of the people, and the equity of the contractor in de- 

clding the coirse of action that was taken. The of- 

ficials were forced to act as best they knew how in an 

effort to bring about the greatest good to the great- 

est number of people. 
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Methods Used to secure Action 

The methods used by the several interested parties 

to get action were not new, but they were aulte effective. 

However, the resulting action was not always that which 

was desired. The most direct method was that of sub- 

mitting petitions signed by citizens of these two counties 

to the Oregon Legislature and to the Oregon delegation 

in Congress. Representatives of the people at the Oregon 

Legislature and at Washington, D. C., were influential 

in securing action.. These resolutions and representatives 

were responsible for the memorialization of Congress in 

an effort to bring about an investigation of the case. 

desults were secured indirectly through the press 

at Canyon City, Rums, and Portland, Oregon. Editorials 

were used in an effort to bring about active opposition 

of r. Rerrick and the Forest Service. Certain mdlvi- 

duals did all they coulczl to prevent the parties to the 

contract fulfilling their oblIgations by refusing to 

cooperate in the enterprise and by actually obstructing 

the development. Then, because of these reasons and 

poor economic conditions, Mr. Herrick could not meet 

his obligations, the Forest Service was forced to act. 

They attempted to get action by writing into the contract 

specifIc construction stipulations and by exacting a fine 

of fifty thousand dollars from Mr. Tierrick as liquidated 

damages. 

Certainly another factor of importance here was 

Mr. Terrickts apparent Ignorance of the people's desires. 
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It mattered very little whether he was actually promot- 

Ing the project for their interests or not. They were 

convincéd by those opposing him that he was not sincere, 

and action was demanded. Mr. Herrick apparently did noth- 

ing in an effort to change theIr minds. He was too 

independent and egotistical. 
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Discussion 

This contract was let at a very inopnortune time 

from the standpoint of development. The market price 

of lumber was starting down, and as Mr. Herrick had in- 

tended to finance the enterprise from sales of timber 

products, be was Immediately put at a disadvantage. He 

could not uut money that he did not have into the pro- 

ject, and thIs resulted in the development of personal 

opposition to everything he trIed to accomplish. The 

opposition grew as time went on because its results 

were cumulative. Each obstacle that Mr. Herrlck failed 

to surmount made the situation just that much worse for 

him and equally better for his opnonents. 

Mr. Barnes and his associates apparently had no 

intention of allowing such a golden opnortunity as this 

situation offered to sUp by them. Under the guise of 

being very public spirIted individuals they secured the 

support of many people in Grant and Harney Counties In 

bringing the sale about, In opposing extensions of time 

under the contract, and in bringIng about the Investiga- 

tion by the sub-coimnittee of the Senate. This Investiga- 

tion, it might be said, put the finishing touches on an 

otherwise completed scheme to bring about the cancella- 

tion of the contract. Although Mr. Herrick did not lose 

the contract at the time of tb Investigation, It was less 

than a year 1atei t'nat the cancellati'n occurred. 
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The Forest Service officials were between the 

proverbial devil and the deep blue sea. They had to 

consider the substantial investments Mr. Herrick was 

making, even though the amounts he was putting into the 

enterprise were hardly half as great as the contract 

specIfIed. And from shortly after the letting of the 

contract they had been receiving letters and telegrais 

In approval and protest of Mr. Herrick. The primary rea- 

son for their approval of the sale at this time was to 

bring about the development of that community; other- 

wise, the sale probably would not have been made be- 

cause of economic conditions. They also had to consider 

the fact was the possibilIty of not beng able 

to sell the timber to another person at as high a price 

as l'fr. Flerrick had agreed to pay for it. All of these 

considerations became more important as time went on and 

the protests became more Insistent and frequent. 

Mr. Herrick's troubles, aside from those directly 

responsible for his inability to invest his money in the 

project as rapidly as he had contracted to, came about 

as a result of a few influential people trying to pro- 

tect their interests. Mr. Barnes and his associates 

were speculating In a land enter-prise, and if this 

project were not successfully developed their invest- 

ments would have been practically a total loss. 
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The people at Burns who were in business and fami- 

liar with the general economic conditions were the ones 

who favored the extension of time by the Forest Service 

to allow Mr. Herrick to complete the development. They 

realized that letting Mr. Herrick finish the project 

would probably be best for everyone concerned, if he 

could possibly do so. They knew that economic conditions 

could not be overlooked by anyone who controlled an 

investment of several million dollars. 

On the other hand, those who opposed Mr. 1-Terrick 

and the Forest Service seemed to do so because of per- 

sorial reasons or because they were influenced by those 
opjesinq 

who had personal reasons for,he arties to the contract. 

T7'ost of the opposition came from people in Grant County 

whose animosity toward the Forest Service was the result 

of grazing controversies, or who were not in a position 

to benefit as much from the development as many in Har- 

ney County would. Those of the opposition who did not 

have a personal interest in the matter appeared to lack 

an understanding of the situation and accepted Mr. Barnes' 

word in explanation of it. 

This case furnishes a very good example of many of 

the problems encountered by those in charge of a govern- 

ment business. Undoubtedly many of the phases of this 

case were new and demanded special consideration, even 

more so than is ordinarily necessary. The timber was 
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situated in a part of the country remote from any 

economical means of transDortation, necessItating the 

construction of eighty miles of railroad before the opera- 

tion could be started. There was more active opposition 

than is ordinarily encountered in developing a project 

of this size. Economic conditions were comparatively 

unfavorable. The general public was more vitally in- 

terested in this sale than is generally true. This 

was one of the largest timber sales ever made by the 

Government, and it brought bout more opposition by 

operators of private holdings. 
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Conclus i ons 

As long as the Government remaIns n any business, 

politics will continue to play an important part 

in the control of that business. After all, the general 

public is just about limited to this means of exerting 

any influence over those who manage a government enter- 

prise, and when action is necessary it is generally 

through political pressure that the attempt is made 

to secure the desired result. Otherwise there would be 

nc method of control available with which to combat the 

graft which seems to he an Inherent characteristIc of 

most government-controlled businessès. And although 

graft appears much less frequently in the Forest Service 

than In many other lines of governmental activity be- 

cause so few of the personnel are political appointees, 

political influence remains the most effective tool by 

which the head of the Forest Service can be Influenced 

in making his decisions. 

In this case when the small group of individuals 

decided that some action should be taken, they attempt- 

ed at first to bring it about through the Influence of 

a few prominent people and by sending delegates to 

Washington, D. C. Their requests were not treated 

favorably, coming from so few neople and at the time 

they did. Not fleeting with much success in their first 

trial, tIey drew up resolutions and had them signed by 

several hundred people. These, together with letters 
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and telegrams, were sent to te Forest ServIce and t'fle 

Oregon delegation at Washington, D. C. These apparently 

had the desired result, because the timber was offered 

for sale soon afterward. 

After the timber was sold and sorne of the people 

decided that Mr. T-ierrick should not be allowed to continue 

with the development at the rate he was doing the work, 

the same methods were used in attempts to prevent his 

getting extensions of time to finish the contract. When 

these were not too successftl, they began demsnding an 

investigation of the whole proposition. It was not 

until those opuosing Mr. Herrick had lobbied a memorial 

to Congress through the Oregon Legislature th.at thi; point 

was gained. After the investigation it seemed to be 

merely a matter of tïme until Mr. Tderrick lost the contract. 

Although any public administrator cannot base his 

decisions on the recommendations of a few individuals frìo 

may or may not have ulterior motives behind their re- 

quests, there comes a time when the intensity of 

protests is such as to demand attention. This time would 

depend upon circumstances surrounding the snecial case 

under consideration when the decision had to be made. 
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